
CABINET 

Monday, 13th July, 2015

7.00 pm

Town Hall Watford

Publication date: 3 July 2015

CONTACT
If you require further information or you would like a copy of this agenda in another format, 
e.g. large print, please contact Caroline Harris Democratic Services Manager on 01923 
278372 or by email – legalanddemocratic@watford.gov.uk .

mailto:legalanddemocratic@watford.gov.uk


Welcome to this meeting.  We hope you find these notes useful.

ACCESS

Access to the Town Hall after 5.15 pm is via the Customer Service Centre.

Visitors may park in the staff car park after 4.00 p.m. and before 7.00 a.m.  This is a Pay 
and Display car park; the current charge is £1.50 per visit.

The Committee Rooms are on the first floor of the Town Hall and a lift is available.
Induction loops are available in the Committee Rooms.

TOILETS (including disabled)

Toilets are situated on the first floor, near the Committee Rooms.

FIRE/EMERGENCY INSTRUCTIONS

In the event of a fire alarm sounding, vacate the building immediately following the 
instructions given by the Democratic Services Officer.

 Do not use the lifts
 Do not stop to collect personal belongings
 Go to the assembly point at the Pond and wait for further instructions
 Do not re-enter the building until authorised to do so.

MOBILE PHONES

Please ensure that mobile phones are switched off or on silent before the start of the 
meeting.

FILMING / PHOTOGRAPHY / RECORDING / REPORTING

Please note: this meeting might be filmed / photographed / recorded / reported by a party 
other than Watford Borough Council for subsequent broadcast or publication.

If you do not wish to have your image / voice captured you should let the Chair or 
Democratic Services Officer know before the start of the meeting.

An audio recording may be taken at this meeting for administrative purposes only.



CABINET MEMBERSHIP

Mayor D Thornhill (Chair)
Councillor D Scudder (Deputy Mayor)
Councillors S Johnson, I Sharpe, P Taylor and M Watkin

AGENDA

PART A - OPEN TO THE PUBLIC

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

2. DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST (IF ANY) 

3. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 

The minutes of the meeting held on 9 March 2015 to be submitted and signed.

Copies of the minutes of this meeting are usually available seven working days 
following the meeting.

(All minutes are available on the Council’s website.)

4. CONDUCT OF MEETING 

The Cabinet may wish to consider whether there are any items on which there is 
general agreement which could be considered now, to enable discussion to focus 
on those items where the Cabinet sees a need for further debate.

5. SUTTON, GADE AND CHURCH CAR PARK LEASE VARIATION (Pages 5 - 16)

Report of Head of Regeneration and Development

6. UPDATE ON CROXLEY RAIL LINK (Pages 17 - 22)

Report of Head of Regeneration and Development

7. WATFORD HEALTH CAMPUS, LABV BUSINESS PLAN (Pages 23 - 68)

Report of Managing Director

8. SUMMARY OF THE FINANCIAL OUTTURN 2014/15 (Pages 69 - 84)

Report of Director of Shared Services Finance

9. EXCLUSION OF PRESS & PUBLIC 

http://watford.moderngov.co.uk/mgCalendarMonthView.aspx?GL=1&bcr=1


THE CHAIR TO MOVE: that, under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 
1972, the public and press be excluded from the meeting for the following item of 
business as it is likely, in view of the nature of the business to be transacted or the 
nature of the proceedings, that if members of the public were present during 
consideration of the item there would be disclosure to them of exempt information 
as defined in Section 100(1) of the Act for the reasons stated below in terms of 
Schedule 12A.

NOTE: if approved, the Chair will ask members of the press and public to 
leave the meeting at this point.

10. APPROVAL OF STRATEGY FOR WATFORD BUSINESS PARK 

Report of Head of Regeneration and Development

This report is considered as Part B in accordance with Paragraph 3, Part 1, 
Schedule 12A as it contains commercially sensitive information.



 

PART A 

Report to: Cabinet
Date of meeting: 13th July 2015
Report of:  Head of Regeneration & Development
Title: Sutton, Gade and Church car park lease variation

1.0 SUMMARY

1.1 A variation to Sutton, Gade and Church car park leases with CitiPark is proposed, 
essentially extending the 15 year term to 25 years to secure additional investment of 
approximately £1.4m into the car parks bringing the total investment from £2.5m to 
£3.9m. CitiPark will be carrying out extensive works ensuring that Gade, Sutton and 
Church car park are all refurbished to a high standard.

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1 It is recommended that Cabinet

2.2  Agrees to vary the term of the three leases (Sutton, Gade and Church car 
park) from 15 years to 25 years

 Agrees a rolling break clause from Year 10 for Gade Car Park lease
 Agrees to vary the three associated work deeds to include additional repairs 

and refurbishment
 Delegates to the Regeneration and Property Section Head authority to agree 

to final terms for the necessary legal documents.

Contact Officer:
For further information on this report please contact: 

Hannah Heinemann, Property Development Project Manager
telephone extension: 8212 email: hannah.heinemann@watford.gov.uk

Report approved by: Head of Regeneration and Development



 

3.0 DETAILED PROPOSAL

3.1
Background
On 1st December 2014, Cabinet agreed to give notice to INTU to terminate the lease 
relating to Sutton, Gade and Church car parks with effect from 31st March 2015. 
Cabinet also agreed to enter into 3 separate leases with CitiPark (then Town Centre 
Car Parks) for these three car parks. The term of each lease is 15 years.

Gade car park lease also contains two break clauses (one at year 5 and a rolling break 
clause from year 7). The break clauses are the reason why the expenditure on Gade 
car park is currently limited to £120k.

The combined annual rent from all three car parks to the Council is £835,000. There is 
also provision for a share in the turnover once it exceeds £2.4m.

Three separate work deeds are in place that will address the much needed concrete 
repairs to the car parks as well as the renewal of the elastomeric deck coating. These 
works are necessary to extend the lifespan of the car parks. High volume areas will be 
decorated on a regular basis and the new parking equipment including Automatic 
Number Plate Recognition will be installed. Gade car park lease includes an 
expenditure cap of £120k due to the break clauses mentioned above. The extent of 
concrete repairs and elastomeric deck coating that can be carried out on Gade car 
park is therefore limited. 

The total investment based on the existing legal documentation is estimated to be 
£2.5m.

3.2 Variation to the Leases/Work Deeds
CitiPark proposes to carry out further works to those already agreed to ensure a high 
standard to the car parks. This work would include speed shutters, introduction of 
parking pads and high decorative finishes. The additional investment is estimated at 
£1.4m.  Appendix A gives an impression of the finished refurbishment. 

In order to make viable the additional investment estimated at £1.4m, CitiPark are 
seeking to secure a 25 year term for each lease. This would allow for a longer payback 
period. The proposal would see the expenditure cap of £120k removed from the Gade 
car park lease and Gade Car Park would be brought into full repair.  It is also proposed 
to include a rolling break clause from Year 10 in Gade car park’s lease to allow for 
potential redevelopment opportunities for Gade car park that may be identified in the 
future. Should the break be exercised, the Council would pay CitiPark an amount of 
the investment made in proportion to the remaining term of the lease. The proposal 
would not see any change to the rent of £835,000 from all three car parks.

Advice received from the Council’s property consultants Lambert Smith Hampton 
states that the proposal is excellent value for money. Cost consultancy advice has also 
been obtained which confirms that the cost estimates stated are reasonable. 



 

3.3 On the basis of the information set out above, Cabinet are asked to agree the 
recommendations set out in Section 2.2 above which would enable the extension of 
the car park leases.

4.0 IMPLICATIONS

4.1 Financial

4.1.1 The Shared Director of Finance comments that the financial implications are contained 
in the body of the report.  The additional costs in relation to the consultancy and legal 
fees relating to the lease negotiations can be contained within the current revenue 
budget.

4.2 Legal Issues (Monitoring Officer)
Advice had been received from Walker Morris LLP, the Council’s legal advisors on the 
car park leases and they have confirmed that the proposal is a land transaction and 
therefore outside of the scope of procurement law. Walker Morris also advised that 
were a party to argue that the leases are a service contract concession that these 
were exempt under the 2006 Regulations.   

4.3 Equalities

4.3.1 The amount of disabled car parking spaces will remain the same and CitiPark will 
make improvements in the form of parking pads to allow for easier parking. They are 
also proposing to change the kerbs in various locations to allow for better access.

4.4 Potential Risks

Potential Risk Likelihood Impact Overall 
score

Lessee defaulting on delivering works 1 4 4
Lessee defaulting on paying rent 1 4 4
Lessee assigning lease to different operator 2 2 4
Those risks scoring 9 or above are considered significant and will need specific attention in 
project management. They will also be added to the service’s Risk Register.

4.5 Staffing
4.5.1 n/a
4.6 Accommodation
4.6.1 n/a
4.7 Community Safety
4.7.1 All car parks will have to be park mark accredited
4.8 Sustainability
4.8.1

Appendices

 Appendix A – CitiPark Improvement Overview





Appendix A

CitiPark Improvements



Pedestrian Lobbies
CitiPark Lobby Enhancement (excl lifts)

Ceilings _
Shot blast, de-Flake and prime for painting with 

Johnstone’s Fire Retardant Paint Acrylic eggshell 
00A05

Existing Internal Walls_ 
Generally

Shot blast, de-Flake and prime 
for painting with Johnstone’s
Fire Retardant Paint Acrylic 

eggshell colour 00A05

Floors_
Johnstones PR Epoxy High 
Build Floor Paint 2 pack  
Colour Goosewing Grey  -
00A05. Allowance to be made 
for self-levelling screed to any 
areas of existing finish that sit 
low or are damaged.

Internal Walls_ Around 
Lobbies

Shot blast, de-flake and prime for 
painting with Johnstone’s Fire 

Retardant Paint Acrylic eggshell 
00A05. 1100mm High band of 
darker paint required to match 

colour RAL 7037.

Stair / Lift Lobbies – All Car 
Parks

Image for illustrative 
purposes only



Internal Level Overview – All Car 
Park

Masonry Paint to brick wall and 
columns
Walls_ Johnstone Stormshield
Pliolite masonry paint 00A05 
(Has Anti-Carbonation 
properties). 1100mm High band 
of darker paint required to match 
colour RAL 7037 Dusty Grey.

Shutters, gates and 
Railings_

Shot blast, prime and re-
paint using metal paint. 

Colour RAL 5002 
Ultramarine Blue

Parking Pads

Floor_
Finish raised areas in  same as 

lobbies.
Johnstones PR Epoxy High Build 

Floor Paint 2 pack 
Allowance to be made for self-

levelling screed to any areas of 
existing finish that sit low or are 

damaged.

Edge detail to kerbs
Remove existing aluminium trim. 
Chamfer concrete kerb to 45deg and re-
paint in RAL 1023 Traffic Yellow

Parapet + barrier 
Shot blast and re-paint 

parapet walls above coating 
using Johnstones

Stormshield Pliolite masonry 
paint 00A05 during re-coating 

works.



Roof Area – Before



Roof Area – After

Full top deck coating & parking pads to 
Gade

CitiPark Parking Pads Enhancement to 
Church and Sutton

Image for illustrative 
purposes only



Speed shutters



Investment of additional 
£1.4m
• External paint to Church and Gade car park improving visual appearance

• Increased Security through Speed Gates

• High decorative finishes (including extensive painting and way finding)

• New/Refurbished lobby and entrance doors

• Realignment of some kerb lines/angling kerbs at 45 degrees to protect cars

• Entrance Gantry Signs

• Pigeon Treatment to ensure cleanliness through out all car parks

• Further signage to improve way finding and security

• Parking Pads for all car parking spaces





 

PART A 

Report to: Cabinet
Date of meeting: 13 July 2015
Report of: Head of Regeneration and Development
Title: Update on Croxley Rail Link

1.0 SUMMARY

1.1 This report provides an update on the Croxley Rail Link project including funding 
arrangements and governance.

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1 To note the delivery arrangements for the Croxley Rail Link and to agree  the 
proposed stakeholder project structure and chairing arrangements and delegate 
attendance at the Board to the Managing Director 

2.2 To confirm the Council's long term financial contribution to CRL as set out in 
paragraph 3.3 .

Contact Officer:
For further information on this report please contact: 
Andrew Gibson, Economic Development Manager
Telephone extension: 8286
Email: andrew.gibson@watford.gov.uk

Report approved by: Jane Custance, Head of Regeneration and Development

mailto:ndrew.gibson@watford.gov.uk


 

3.0 DETAILED PROPOSAL

3.1 The purpose of this report is to provide a formal update on the Croxley Rail Link 
project.

The Croxley Rail Link is a proposed diversion and extension of the Watford branch of 
the Metropolitan Line to Watford Junction via Watford High Street.  New stations will 
be provided on the new rail link at Cassiobridge, serving Western Gateway, and at 
Watford Vicarage Road, serving the football club and Watford Health Campus.

The key objectives of the project are:

 To enhance sustainable transport links across South West Hertfordshire and 
connections to north west, central and the city of London and the national rail 
network, thus reinforcing Watford’s role as a key transport hub north of London.

 To promote economic and housing development by improving public transport 
linkages between current/potential employees, Watford town centre and the key 
development areas of Watford Junction, Watford Business Park/Ascot Road 
(Western Gateway) and the Watford Health Campus.

 To provide a sustainable and value-for-money alternative to car travel, with 
inherently lower environmental impacts per trip including noise and greenhouse 
gas emissions.

3.2 Following positive discussions between HCC, WBC,  DFT and TFL, on 26 March 2015 
the Mayor of London approved a Mayoral Direction to TfL to:

 take over responsibility for delivering the entire project including civil 
engineering works, systems and the procurement of additional rolling stock.

 provide £46.5m of funding towards the costs of delivering Croxley Rail Link 
based on a total cost of the project of £284.5m on the basis that the 
Government increases TfL’s overall borrowing requirement by £30m and that 
£16m will be funded from the TfL capital budget.

 be responsible for any cost overruns above the current project estimate of 
£284.5m.

3.3 The following breakdown of funding has been agreed for the scheme:  



 

Watford Borough Council’s contribution to the above is as follows:

- £2.59m S106 and capital contribution made in 2014/15
- £5.85m to be paid from CIL receipts through to 2031 and/or development 

receipts. A reserve will be set aside to make this provision.
 
As part of the total funding package, the developers taking forward major schemes 
benefiting from the rail link will also contribute £1.150m.

As a result of the Mayor of London’s decision the project is now being led by London 
Underground Limited and will be re-branded as the Metropolitan Line Extension to 
Watford.

3.5 Below is the TFL delivery timetable for the project.

3.6 Discussions are currently taking place between Hertfordshire County Council and 
London Underground Limited to finalise a well-defined Governance structure for 
implementation of the project. It is estimated that the time period required to ensure 
the successful transfer and clarification of roles and responsibilities will continue until 
July 2015. Both parties are working in partnership to ensure the effective delivery of 
the scheme and HCC and WBC have agreed to push for the earliest possible opening.

3.7 Proposed Project Governance 
The Croxley Rail Link is a fundamental enabler of the regeneration of Watford and the 
substantial investment is based more on the accrued economic regeneration benefits 
than on purely transport benefits.

The primary objective of economic regeneration and the substantial public sector 
investment levered in to support it, therefore needs to not just drive the Croxley Rail 
Link, but also the local development in a coordinated way.

The proposed Governance Structure is that a Watford Regeneration Board (WRB) will 
be established to provide an overseeing role for both the Rail Link project. and the 
capture of the wider benefits. The wider economic impact of the Croxley Rail Link has 
been estimated by economists as contributing £8.3b to the area in the long term, 
including catalysing 7,600 construction jobs and 4,400 permanent jobs.



 

The WRB, meeting quarterly, shall provide the overseeing role, ensuring that the 
stated outcomes for regeneration are delivered and in a coordinated manner.

The Board will comprise key project stakeholders, including:
 Watford Borough Council (Chair)
 Hertfordshire County Council
 Hertfordshire LEP
 Transport for London
 London Underground Ltd.
 Representatives from Watford’s Major Development Projects, including Watford 

Health Campus, Watford Business Park, Ascot Road, Charter Place and 
Watford Junction.

The WRB shall oversee the CRL delivery planning and ensure alignment with the 
Council’s major projects.

3.8 For the Croxley Rail Link this shall include:

Specifying and Monitoring Programme.  Key dates to be monitored include the 
opening date and all Good Neighbour Commitment dates, such as dates for land 
entry, site occupation of the Health Campus, roads and bridge construction and other 
operational issues of the like.

Specifying and Monitoring Service Levels.  Whilst service levels have been 
determined, any future proposed variances that will have an impact on the business 
case for Croxley Rail Link and/or the accessibility within the corridor e.g consideration 
of promoting services to Amersham and extending the Bakerloo Line into Watford 
Junction will be considered by this Board.

Co-ordinating Funding.  The Board will be responsible for co-ordinating the complex 
funding arrangements between local contributors and managing cash flow.



 

Receiving Progress and Exception Reports from London Underground Ltd.  These 
reports will provide a general update on expenditure, programme and delivery of Good 
Neighbour Commitments, plus highlight any opportunities or threats to delivering to the 
specification and reputation for consideration by the WRB.

The WRB will also oversee a branded campaign (e.g. Watford – Access All Areas) 
aimed at providing a positive image of Watford, whilst ensuring that both residential 
and business communities and all stakeholders are kept informed during construction 
peaks, disruption is minimised and all good neighbour commitments are delivered from 
each development.

The Board is a project board taking a co-ordinating and advisory role. It will not have 
legal status and formal voting rights.

4.0 IMPLICATIONS

4.1 Financial

4.1.1 The Shared Director of Finance comments that the financial implications are contained 
within the report.  

4.2 Legal Issues (Monitoring Officer)

4.2.1 The Head of Democracy and Governance comments that there are no legal 
implications in this report as the WRB will have no legal standing.

4.3 Equalities

4.3.1 No equalities issues

4.4 Potential Risks

Potential Risk Likelihood Impact Overall 
score

Project costs increase 2 4 8
CRL is not delivered to programme 2 4 8
Progress on other projects is adversely impacted by 
CRL

2 4 8

The predicted benefits associated with CRL do not 
arise 

2 2 4

Those risks scoring 9 or above are considered significant and will need specific attention in 
project management. They will also be added to the service’s Risk Register.

Background Papers

London Mayoral Direction MD1478 dated 26 March 2015 
NLP Report – Wider Economic Impacts of CRL

File Reference

 None





 

PART A

Report to: Cabinet
Date of meeting: 13th July 2015
Report of: Managing Director 
Title: Watford Health Campus, LABV Business Plan

1.0 SUMMARY

1.1 This report provides an update on the LABV Business Plan in accordance with the 
requirements of the Members’ Agreement. The Plan sets out the aims of the LABV, 
the current masterplan and delivery plan and the funding strategy. 

The LABV was formerly established on 18 June 2013 and this plan captures the 
work that has progressed to the point of having agreed  the Infrastructure Contract 
that provides for the construction of the new road.

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1 To approve the 2015 LABV Business Plan as set out in Annexe 1 and to note the 
key provisions of the Infrastructure Contract. 

2.2 To approve the Business Plan for Industrial Zone South as set out in Annexe 2.

Contact Officer:
For further information on this report please contact: 
Martin Jones, Regeneration and Property Section Head 
extension 8408 martin.jones@watford.gov.uk  

Report approved by: Manny Lewis 

mailto:martin.jones@watford.gov.uk


 

3.0 DETAILED PROPOSAL

3.1 The first LABV business plan was adopted on incorporation in June 2013.

The objectives of the LABV for the Health Campus are:

 To ensure a holistic scheme with a good balance between quality and 
affordability;

 To provide employment opportunities and high quality new jobs which help 
support Watford's regional role as a major business centre;

 To ensure that the layout and form of development will be adaptable and provide 
for a variety and  range of different uses;

 Where possible to achieve the highest standards of design quality that is 
sympathetic to its surroundings and that promotes sustainable, energy efficient 
and environmentally – friendly practices and technology;

 To strengthen the ability of WHHT to undertake the phased reprovision of its 
estate and enhance the urban environment and 'offer' to staff and patients;

 To create a quality built environment and excellent open spaces that are fit for 
purpose;

 To improve vehicular access to the hospital and alleviate congestion on Vicarage 
Road and surrounding area;

 To incorporate high quality housing;
 To enable integration – both visual and physical with surrounding areas;
 To make provision for a variety of travel modes including walking and cycling;
 To create a new mixed use local centre, including commercial, social and 

community uses with an offer that attracts residents, staff and visitors;
 To incorporate existing open spaces, including improved access to the River 

Colne with new attractive open spaces providing a range of recreational uses; 
and

 To support the continued development of Watford Football Club as an important 
local asset.

The LABV Plan will deliver the following quantum of uses:

 Residential units (total) 750
 Residential units (FTA) 69 family housing units, subject to Secretary of State 

decisions
 Residential units (non-FTA) 681 (1, 2 bed flats and 3 bed housing mix)
 Percentage family housing (total) 20%
 Affordable housing 35%
 Business space (north & south) 89,710 sq ft (based on Trade City Scheme of 

68,460 – Industrial Zone South)
 Retail space 73,001 sq ft net
 Leisure 7,427 sq ft
 Office (inc. part hospital expansion) 151,446 sq ft (not including FTA)
 Hotel 80 bed

The Business Plan attached at annexe 1 makes the following key changes to the 



 

Business Plan that was agreed on the LABV’s incorporation in 2013 in terms of the 
primary uses proposed on the site:

a) Increase in residential units from 559 to 750 (maintaining 35% Affordable 
provision)
b) Decrease in Business space from 96,913 sq ft to 89,710 sq ft
c) Retail space has increased from 58,440 sq ft to 73,001 sq ft
d) Leisure space has decreased from 11,875 sq ft to 7,427 sq ft
e) Office (inc part hospital expansion) has increased from 141,250 sq ft to 151,446 
sq ft (not including FTA)
f) Hotel has changed from a 100 bed to an 80 bed

Other primary changes to the scheme include:

a) the provision of a ‘Central Square’ with links from Vicarage Road to the Colne 
Valley and appropriate uses surrounding it;
b) the re-provision of the multi storey car park underground, beneath the proposed 
Central Square;
c) the replacement of WFC hospitality car parking within the FTA site;
d) the inclusion of a Community Garden within the FTA site;
e) land for the proposed expansion of Laurance Haines school by 1FE;
f) the change at ‘Colne Island’ from a lake to landscaped amenity area/SUDs that 
will flood only during heavy rainfall events
g) significantly improved design, layout and positioning of buildings and their 
surrounding spaces. The masterplan is now an effective piece of urban design that 
reflects the quality aspirations of the Health Campus.

The Illustrative Masterplan has changed considerably from that which was included 
as part of the original LABV Business Plan and was also subject to an independent 
Design Review Panel. The most prominent change is the formation of a ‘streetscene’ 
adjacent to the blue light route through the positioning of the residential blocks 
directly abutting the road rather than at the foot of the embankments. The 
relationship between buildings, spaces and public routes is now coherent with 
effective supplementary landscaping

Members are also asked to agree the business plan for Industrial Zone South 
(Annexe 2) which will be the first main development aside from the road 
construction. This provides for the first employment zone, commencing September 
2015 for completion June 2016 in parallel with the infrastructure works which will 
have the benefit of integrating construction and ground works. The scheme will 
deliver a high quality ‘Trade City’ of 16 units for which there is anticipated to be 
considerable demand. The funding of the Zone remains flexible through the LABV 
forward funding or partner equity. Any financial implications for the Council including 
land values will be the subject of a separate report to Cabinet.

-
3.2 Progress to Date

 Detailed planning approval has been achieved for the Highways Works, and 
hybrid approval has been achieved for the masterplan. 



 

 The key statutory agreements, third party approvals, and licences necessary to 
commence the Highways works have been completed.

 The Infrastructure contractor has been procured, Volkerfitzpatrick Ltd and the 
contract terms agreed (see para 4.1) below.

 A revised, detailed planning application for Industrial Zone South is also being 
finalised – this is necessary primarily due to changes in occupier requirement. A 
stand alone planning application solely to accommodate changes in level on the 
site, and to allow a substantial volume of material left on site by the previous 
tenant to be incorporated into ground levels has been submitted and is currently 
under consideration with the Council’s planning department

 Enabling works and land clearance has commenced.
 The CPO inquiry took place in January 2015 and we are awaiting the Inspector’s 

decision.
 A further submission to the Secretary of State to appropriate Farm Terrace 

Allotments was made in 2014 and we are awaiting his decision. The submitted 
Business Plan is based on the original plan to locate hospital, housing and WFC 
car parking uses on the Farm Terrace site but HCC has also asked the Council 
to explore whether a 2 FE school could be provided at the location in addition to 
the hospital use and this is being examined. Any necessary changes to the 
business plan will be reported to Cabinet once the final position is known. 

 The  construction of the new road has commenced.

In  addition to the extracts of the  business plans set out in Annexes  1&2, there are 
further supporting documents which cover:

-the CVs of the Kier board members
- the Board’s procurement procedures
- the LABV’s sustainability statement
- the energy strategy
- a design guide
- a landscape guide.
- phasing plans
- Trade City specifications
- Project Management and Employers Agent duties
- enquiry schedules
- business case for merging the road construction with the Trade City 
development

These documents are available on request.

- INFRASTRUCTURE CONTRACT

4.1 The key terms are as follows:

Parties 1. Watford Health Campus Partnership LLP 
2. Volkerfitzpatrick Limited 

Form of Contract Amended Standard NEC3, Option C (target cost) 
Summary of scope The works to be designed and constructed include a 

new “blue light” road and associated junctions, a new 
combined road and pedestrian and cycle bridge over 
the new Croxley Rail Link together with other 



 

permanent works, flood alleviation works, ground 
improvements, new utilities and utilities diversions and 
other site preparation works all to support the new 
road and proposed development of the Watford Health 
Campus including works pursuant to two s278 
agreements, two s38 agreements and an overbridge 
agreement. 

Target Cost £18,352,330.791 

Completion Date for the 
Works 

The Works are to be completed and handed over in 
seven sections, each by its Completion Date. The 
Completion Date by which the final section is to be 
completed is 17 October 2016, subject to any 
entitlement to an extension of time under the contract.

Liability period for 
defective 
design/workmanship in a 
Section 

12 years from Completion of the relevant section of 
the Works

Performance Security Parent company guarantee from Volkerwessels 
Limited  

HCC has agreed to maintain the road on completion and to adopt it subsequently. 

4.0 IMPLICATIONS

4.1 Financial

4.1.1 The overall cost of Infrastructure delivery (road, bridge, services, earth works, 
remediation, flood plain amelioration, construction of culverts) is £22,226,884.

This is funded as follows:

DoH grant to WHHT     £7,000,000
WBC loan to WHHT     £2,000,000
LEP funding                  £ 6,000,000
Kier                                £3,613,422
WBC                              £3,613,422.

The returns from the scheme are cashflowed to repay the LEP interest free loan of 
£6m but negotiations are continuing with the LEP to recycle this funding.

WBC’s contribution has been earmarked within the capital programme.

The WBC loan to WHHT is repaid by the Trust on the terms set out in the Campus 
Agreement. 



 

The financial appraisals and  cashflow appendices within the Business Plan are not 
included in this report due to commercial confidentiality. The overall gross 
development value of the scheme (20+ years) is £288m with a corresponding profit 
level at 14.7%, meaning that the scheme remains at the lower end of viability given the 
high level of risk in the scheme. 

The Business Plan assumes that funding developments in the scheme can be 
undertaken through partner equity funding. If external debt was used this would 
increase costs and reduce profitability. Each zone development will require a business 
plan and business case approved by Cabinet and the LABV board including the 
funding and cashflow options. There is no requirement for the Council to make further 
equity contributions, Cabinet will be able to appraise the merits of each case as the 
scheme developments.  Similarly the options for recycling the Council’s profit share 
and/or taking these as loan note interest and dividends will also be for Cabinet 
consideration.

4.2 Legal Issues (Monitoring Officer)

4.2.1 The Head of Democracy and Governance comments that under the Members 
Agreement for the LABV cabinet is required to formally approve all LABV business 
plans on behalf of the Council as LABV member.

4.3 Equalities

4.3.1 There are no equalities issues

4.4 Potential Risks

Potential Risk Likelihood Impact Overall 
score

Delays in assembling land 2 4 8
Economic conditions makes scheme unviable 2 5 10
Cashflow requirements  to deliver the scheme 
become  excessive

2 3 6

Croxley Rail Link is delayed or doesn’t happen 2 4 8
Road contractor insolvency 1 3 3
Quantum of development in West Watford 
putting strain on infrastructure

2 3 6

Those risks scoring 9 or above are considered significant and will need specific 
attention in project management. They will also be added to the service’s Risk 
Register.

Appendices

 Annex 1- LABV Business Plan
 Annex 2 – Business Zone South Business Plan



















































































Report to: Cabinet
Date of meeting: 13th July 2015
Report of: Director of Finance 
Title: Summary of the Financial Outturn 2014/15

1.0 SUMMARY

1.1 This report informs Cabinet of the revenue and capital outturns for 2014/15.

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1 To consider the revenue outturn as summarised at Appendix 1A, and supplementary 
notes at Appendices 1B to 1E and to note the year end position, which includes the 
carry forwards as shown in paragraph 2.2 below.

2.2 To approve the specific service budgets from 2014/15 to be carried forward into 
2015/16 totalling £1.612m as detailed at Appendix 1E.

2.4 To consider the capital outturn as summarised in Appendix 2. This shows the revised 
budget of £15.149m (which includes £10.164m rephased from 2013/14) and the 
outturn of £9.503m. The variance of £5.646m has occurred from the rephasing of 
large scale projects to 2015/16.

Contact Officer:
For further information on this report please contact Joanne Wagstaffe, Director of  
Finance, telephone extension 8189, email joanne.wagstaffe@watford.gov.uk 



3.0 INTRODUCTION

3.1 A key feature of reporting the outturn for the financial year is to compare it against 
the revised budget. 

3.2 This report provides an analysis of the revenue and capital outturns for 2014/15. 
Further detail can be found in the draft Statement of Accounts that was reported to 
the Audit Committee on 30th June 2015.

4.0 REVENUE OUTTURN 2014/15

4.1 Appendix 1A shows the net expenditure by service area which compares the 
revised 2014/15 budget (as approved by Council on 28 January 2015) to the 
outturn. The net effect, after carry forwards  is an underspend on the cost of 
services of £0.266m. This is made up of underspends, service changes and 
additional income.

4.2 Appendix 1B details the variances when comparing the revised 2014/15 budget 
(as approved by Council on 28 January 2015) to the outturn.

The significant variances which have been included in Budget Panel updates 
during the year are:

Favourable
£615,000 Net increased Government grant for Housing Benefits
£463,000  Housing carry forward not required in 2014/15 and additional income 
£285,000  Additional management fee income received from SLM.

4.3 Appendix 1C shows a favourable variance in funding when comparing the 
revised 2014/15 budget (as approved by Council on 28 January 2015) to the 
outturn. This totals £529,000 and is mainly due to additional non-specific grant 
and small business rate relief.

4.4 Appendix 1D compares the outturn for employee costs to the revised budget and 
shows an unfavourable variance of £0.062m. The main reason for the variance is 
the additional agency staff costs to cover vacancies in Community and Customer 
Services. This variance was reported to Leadership Team during the year and 
included in the year end forecast.

4.5 Appendix 1E details the carry forwards to 2015/16 recommended by Leadership 
Team. 



5.0 CAPITAL OUTTURN 2014/15 

5.1

5.2

A summary analysis of the council’s capital programme has been attached at 
Appendix 2. The overall position shows a net decrease in capital spend of 
£5.646m. The majority of the variance has occurred from the rephasing of projects 
to 2015/16. 
 
Investment within Watford is seen as a key priority and has been financed from 
capital receipts and government grant. Capital expenditure totalling £23.003m is 
planned for the period 2015/18 (2015/16 £15.712m) and built into the medium 
term financial strategy.

6.0 CONCLUSION

6.1 The General Fund under spend, after carry forwards, totals £0.266M. The bulk of 
this is made up from management fee income from SLM, increased Government 
grant and increased income.
  

6.3 The 2014/15 capital programme outturn contains a net underspend of £5,646,000 
against a budget of £15,149,000. The variance of £5.646m has occurred from the 
rephasing of large scale projects to 2015/16. 

The Council continues to have an ambitious programme which includes ensuring 
its infrastructure/assets are well maintained as well as seeking to move forward 
through investment in key projects where the aim is to secure the future prosperity 
of the Watford area.

7.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

7.1 These have been included within the report.

8.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

8.1 There are no legal implications in the report.



9.0 POTENTIAL RISKS

Potential Risk Likelihood Impact Overall 
Score 

That the External Auditor finds material 
errors within the Final Accounts process 

2 4 8 

 

10.0 EQUALITIES

10.1

10.2

Watford Borough Council is committed to equality and diversity as an employer, 
service provider and as a strategic partner. In order to fulfil this commitment and its 
duties under the Equality Act 2010 it is important to demonstrate how policies, 
practices and decisions impact on people with different protected characteristics. It is 
also important to demonstrate that the Council is not discriminating unlawfully when 
carrying out any of its functions.

The reporting of the Final Outturn for 2014/15 does not have any direct equality 
implications In effect it is reporting upon the financial consequences of policies 
already established by the Council and is not seeking to change those policies in any 
way.

Appendices:
Appendix 1A  Revenue Account General Fund Summary 2014/15
Appendix 1B  Major Variances 2014/15
Appendix 1C  Funding Variances 2014/15
Appendix 1D  Employees Costs - Variances 2014/15
Appendix 1E  Carry Forward requests into 2015/16
Appendix 2    Capital Outturn 2014/15



Appendix 1A

Revised Carry 
Budget Outturn Variance Forwards Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Corporate Strategy and Client Services 5,900 5,388 (512) 133 (379)

Community and Customer Services 3,694 3,428 (266) 385 119 

Democracy and Governance 3,382 2,937 (445) 144 (301)

Regeneration and Development (4,397) (4,511) (114) 883 769 

Managing Director 248 229 (19) 0 (19)

Human Resources 587 526 (61) 14 (47)

Strategic Finance (including ICT) 4,576 4,115 (461) 53 (408)

13,990 12,112 (1,878) 1,612 (266)

Note: The above table includes only direct costs and incomes. Technical accounting
adjustments for internal recharges including support services and capital have been
excluded as these have no effect on the Council's Net General Fund position.

2014/15 Revenue Account General Fund Summary

Service Area

Net General Fund



Appendix 1B

2015/15 Major Variances Actuals - Revised Budget v Revenue Outturn

Variance Variance
Service Area Cost Centre (£000s) (£000s) Comment

SLM (Central & Woodside) (285) Additional Leisure income from S.L.M.
Colosseum (Landlord Costs) (20) Unspent Contingency for Colloseum
Centrepoint Community Centre (37) Unspent Contingency for Community Centre 
Parks South Team (150) Net additional Leasing income from Veolia for vehicles
Watford Learn Prt-Learn Hlp Ln (23) Unspent Grant budget Watford Learning Partnership 
Communications (18) Unspent Web development cost
Communications 30 Additional employee costs
Community Centres (20) Unspent Contingency for Grants and Community Centres 

11 Other variances
Corporate Strategy & Client Services - Sub Total (512)

Variance Variance
Service Area Cost Centre (£000s) (£000s) Comment

Information Unit (29) Underspend on Information Unit Subscriptions
Housing (463) Housing grant brought forward not required and additional income
Housing (69) Reduction in repairs and utilities for W.B.C. properties for the homeless
Housing 57 Increase in employee costs - (predominantly Agency staff £50k) assisting with increased caseload
Community Safety (21) Underspend on grants paid out
Building Safer Communities 26 Overspend on Building Safer Communities Grants and Contributions, identified in the forecast in February
Environmental Health Team 38 Efficiency Target for the Environmental Health Service
Taxi Licensing (inc. Hackney) 30 Net cost of Taxi Marshalling. This is the difference between the cost of administering the scheme and the third party contributions 

received.
Licensing and Gambling Act 38 Lower fee income received under Licensing Act 2003 & Gambling Act 2005
Arts & Events 54 Increased Supplies & Services for Town Centre Events and Marketing
Town Centre Special Events 46 Planned cost of ice rink for Big Events (to be funded from reserves) 

27 Other variances
Community & Customer Services - Sub Total (266)



Variance Variance
Service Area Cost Centre (£000s) (£000s) Comment

Registration Of Electors (87) Increased funding for I.E.R.
County Council Elections (72) Grant for County and European Elections 
Members Remuneration & Facil (42) Underspend on employees, transport and supplies and services for Members Remuneration
Committee Services (19) Vacancies and underspend on supplies and services for Committee Services
Support Team (18) Underspend on employees and supplies and services for Support Team
Legal Services Team (24) Underspend on employees and supplies and services for Legal Services Team and increase in Legal Fees
Registration Of Electors (15) Underspend on supplies and services for Registration of Electors
Car Parks - Other Sites (105) Underspend on repairs, maintenance and utilities for Operational Buildings Maintenance
Town Hall Off & Council Suite (43) Underspend on repairs, maintenance and utilities and supplies and services for Town Hall Suite
Buildings,Projects,Facilities (13) Underspend on supplies and services for Buildings, Projects and Facilities

(7) Other variances
Democracy & Governance - Sub Total (445)

Variance Variance
Service Area Cost Centre (£000s) (£000s) Comment

Development Control                                        
Building Control                                                 
Land Charges Car Parking

(103) Increased fees and charges for Development Control, Building Control and Land Charges & Car Parking

Building Control 48 Building Control Efficiency Target
Development Control 40 Increase in consultancy to deal with additional workload
Valuation & Estates Group (33) Underspend on Consultancy for Atrium project
Commercial Projects (High Level) (104) Additional commercial rent income
Policy Team 64 Additional spend on Local Development Framework funded from L.D.F. reserve

(26) Other variances
Regeneration & Development - Sub Total (114)

Variance Variance
Service Area Cost Centre (£000s) (£000s) Comment

Corporate Strategy Team (19) Other variances
Managing Director - Sub Total (19)

Variance Variance
Cost Centre (£000s) (£000s) Comment

HR Shared Service (72) Vacancies
HR Shared Service 36 Shared services payment from T.R.D.C. reduced
Corporate Employee Exp-Client (20) Additional training course fee income

(5) Other variances
Human Resources- Sub Total (61)



Variance Variance
Service Area Cost Centre (£000s) (£000s) Comment

Insurance Services 25 Increased cost of insurance
Finance Client (94) Reduction in payment to Three Rivers
Human Resources Client (33) Underspend on Agency staff
Housing Benefits Client (931) Net increased in Government Grant
Revenues Client 95 Reduction in Court Cost income
Council Tax Benefits Client 305 Payment to Bad Debt Provision re Rent Allowances
Taxation - Council Tax Client 51 Agency, consultancy, legal fees and Giro charges incurred for Watford caseload
ICT Shared Service (68) Reduced Agency and Contract Payments
ICT Shared Service 60 Increase in Hardware, Software and Telephone costs
ICT Shared Service 45 Reduction in payment from Three Rivers

84 Other variances
Strategic Finance - Sub Total (461)

(1,878) (1,878)



Appendix 1C

Revised
Budget Outturn Variance

£000 £000 £000

Government Grants
  Revenue Support Grant (2,575) (2,583) (8)
  Redistributed Business Rates
  and Business Rate Reduction/(Growth)

Council Tax Receipts (7,523) (7,523) 0 

Other Government Funding
  Council Tax Freeze Grant (369) (369) 0 
  Homeless Grant (276) (276) 0 
  Funding - New Homes Bonus (1,731) (1,740) (9)
  Funding - Non Specific Grant 0 (61) (61) Additional grant received
  Small Business Rate Relief S31 0 (464) (464) Part of new Non Domestic Rate regime

(14,620) (15,149) (529)Total Taxation and Non-Specific Grants

Comment

2014/15 General Fund Funding - Variances

Funding From

(2,145) 12 (2,133)



Appendix 1D 

Revised Outturn Less
Budget Outturn Revised

£000 £000 £000
Corporate Strategy and Client Services 958 920 (38)

Community and Customer Services 3,415 3,531 116 Additional agency costs to cover key vacant posts.   

Democracy and Governance 1,560 1,605 45 Overspend on election staff not full time employees. Covered by the 
budget for Election Costs held in Supplies and Services.

Regeneration and Development 2,410 2,405 (5)

Managing Director 211 211 0 

Human Resources 733 664 (69) Vacancies (including apprentices) 

Strategic Finance 186 199 13 

9,473 9,535 62

Note: Employee costs exclude accounting adjustments. 
Shared Services is now provided using the Lead Authority model.

2014/15 Employees Costs - Variances

Service Area

Total

Comments



Appendix 1E

Current Budget Carry
Ref No. Service Budget Actual Remaining Forward Reason for Carry Forward Request

(A) (B) (A) - (B) Request
£

1 Corporate Strategy & Client Services 20,060 181 19,879 19,800 BMS upgrade

2 Corporate Strategy & Client Services 4,000 0 4,000 4,000 Community Centre Framework activity

3 Corporate Strategy & Client Services 41,150 3,214 37,936 37,800 Community Centre Framework activity

4 Corporate Strategy & Client Services 4,000 0 4,000 4,000 Community Centre Framework activity

5 Corporate Strategy & Client Services 8,030 0 8,030 8,000 Community Centre Framework activity

6 Corporate Strategy & Client Services 10,770 6,012 4,758 4,000 Community Centre Framework activity

7 Corporate Strategy & Client Services 14,170 1,614 12,556 11,700 Web development

8 Corporate Strategy & Client Services 19,360 1,639 17,721 15,000 Support "One Watford LSP"

9 Corporate Strategy & Client Services 12,240 8,762 3,478 2,000 Equalities mystery shopping

10 Corporate Strategy & Client Services 8,110 4,000 4,110 4,110 Partnership funding

11 Corporate Strategy & Client Services 22,770 0 22,770 22,770 Partnership funding

12 Community & Customer Services 28,590 1,800 26,790 20,000 GIS system upgrade

13 Community & Customer Services 2,000 231 1,769 1,500 GIS strategy development

15, 16, 52 Community & Customer Services 26,090 4,643 21,447 21,000 Domestic Abuse projects

14 Community & Customer Services 0 -9,500 0 2,500 Better Business for All project

32 Community & Customer Services 4,520 1,910 2,610 2,600 Food Standards Agency audit

33 Community & Customer Services 1,750 3 1,747 1,000 Food Standards Agency audit

35 Community & Customer Services -100,000 -100,000 0 100,000 Public Health projects

36 Community & Customer Services 279,880 36,975 242,905 69,400 Locata upgrade & change rent collection arrangements                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  

37 Community & Customer Services 0 -36,549 36,549 30,000 Unspent grant

38 Community & Customer Services 9,370 2,735 6,635 6,500 Abandoned Vehicle function

39 Community & Customer Services 0 14,491 -14,491 10,500 Abandoned Vehicle function

42 Democracy & Governance 0 -24,000 24,000 24,000 Election equipment 

43 Democracy & Governance 41,370 1,448 39,922 20,000 Election equipment 

57 Democracy & Governance 266,790 191,844 74,946 77,400 Building maintenance works

57 Democracy & Governance 147,400 138,622 8,778 8,700 Building maintenance works

57 Democracy & Governance 13,500 5,515 7,985 7,900 Building maintenance works

57 Democracy & Governance 16,820 10,655 6,165 6,000 Building maintenance works

44 Human Resources 459,480 373,279 86,201 13,600 Apprentice

46 Regeneration and Development 98,000 62,458 35,542 33,000 Atrium Project

47 Strategic Finance 466,300 431,827 34,473 22,800 Agency staff 

48 ICT Shared Service 35,600 25,790 9,810 5,400 Improvement plan

49 ICT Shared Service 37,000 2,342 34,658 5,400 Improvement plan

50 ICT Shared Service 23,500 4,750 18,750 11,100 Improvement plan

51 ICT Shared Service 30,000 16,246 13,754 8,100 Improvement plan

641,580

53 Community & Customer Services N/A N/A N/A 120,000 Big Event programme to promote Watford

45 Regeneration and Development N/A N/A N/A 200,000 Atrium project   

54 Regeneration and Development N/A N/A N/A 650,000 Contribution to project & programmed management reserve

1,611,580

Service Budget Carry Forward Requests form 2014/15 to 2015/16

BUDGET CARRY FORWARD REQUEST (RESERVE CODE - VLU000)





Appendix 2
WATFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL - CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2014/15 & 2015/16

WBC Capital Programme
Revised               
Budget             

2014/15

                                                              
Outturn               
2014/15

                                                                             
Variance                                         
2014/15

Total               
Rephasing 
2014/15

(Underspend) / 
Overspend Post 

Rephasing 
2014/15

Comments on Rephasing 
Request

Service Comments on Underspend / Overspend 

WAA109 - ICT-Hardware Replacement Prog 80,000 1,463.34 -78,537 78,537 0
Service request for re-
phasing..mitigated in part by 
Period 12 spend

WAA132 - ICT - Document Management Proc 15,000 0.00 -15,000 15,000 0
Service request for re-phasing in 
2015/16

WAA134 - ICT-Env Health 189,139 14,033.33 -175,106 175,106 0
Service request for re-phasing in 
2015/16

WAA161 - Replacement Domestic Bins 1 0.00 -1 0 -1 

WAA173 - CCTV Control Room Relocation 198,000 189,021.82 -8,978 8,978 -0 
Service request for re-phasing in 
2015/16

WAA185 - Watford Business Park Redevelo 225,000 164,498.30 -60,502 60,500 -2 
WAA191 - ShS-Business Application Upgra 0 0.00 0 0 0
WAA192 - Town Hall Subway CCTV 0 0.00 0 0 0
WAA193 - Clarendon Road Streetscape Imp 0 0.00 0 0 0
WAA194 - Intro Electric Vehicle Chargin 0 0.00 0 0 0
WAA196 - Private Sector Stock Condition 0 0.00 0 0 0

WAA197 - Veolia Contract Fleet Requirem 124,750 0.00 -124,750 124,750 0
Service request for re-phasing in 
2015/16

Delay in vehicle delivery which are now due in early 
2015/16.

WAA198 - Meriden Community Centre Redev 0 0.00 0 120,000 120,000
Budget virement (see cost centre 
WNC022 - Multi Use Games At 
Meriden)

The expenditure on the MUGA at the Meriden is 
linked to the funding bids being made by Watford 
Football Club Trust and will be drawn down once 
the match funding from other sources is available 
and the project is in development. This is now 
anticipated in 2015/16. The total funding to 
support this project is £320k pulled from 3 sources 
£120k from below, £50k from PRG Reserve and 
£150k from elected mayor approved at Council.

WAA201 - Allotments Upgrades 1,358,720 604,769.84 -753,950 753,950 -0 
Service request for re-phasing in 
2015/16

Project works carried out over 2 years including 
retention to be carried over. 

WAA202 - Farm Terrace Allotments 647,835 34,961.26 -612,874 612,874 0
Service request for re-phasing in 
2015/16

Subject to judicial review outcome. Delay due to 
awaited decision. 

WAA203 - Atrium / GIS 34,000 0.00 -34,000 34,000 0
Service request for re-phasing in 
2015/16

WAA210 - Car Parks Structure Surv 25,000 30,274.09 5,274 0 5,274
WAA211 - New Market 2,462,364 2,460,261.45 -2,103 0 -2,103 

WAA212 - Telephony-Cost of Server Repla 10,000 0.00 -10,000 10,300 300
Service request for re-phasing in 
2015/16

WAA214 - Museum CCTV Intruder Alarm Sys 50,000 24,236.72 -25,763 25,760 -3 
Service request for re-phasing in 
2015/16

WAA215 - Town Centre CCTV Camera Replac 21,000 20,879.26 -121 0 -121 

WAA219 - Gaelic Football Relocation 308,146 66,863.90 -241,282 241,282 -0 
Service request for re-phasing in 
2015/16

Works carried over 2 years and will be completed 
this year. 

WAA221 - ICT-Project Management Provisi 120,000 33,014.14 -86,986 86,985 -1 
Service request for re-phasing in 
2015/16

WAA225 - Property Review 100,000 93,608.92 -6,391 0 -6,391 



WATFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL - CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2014/15 & 2015/16

WBC Capital Programme
Revised               
Budget             

2014/15

                                                              
Outturn               
2014/15

                                                                             
Variance                                         
2014/15

Total               
Rephasing 
2014/15

(Underspend) / 
Overspend Post 

Rephasing 
2014/15

Comments on Rephasing 
Request

Service Comments on Underspend / Overspend 

WAA912 - Improvements Community Centres 80,000 20,813.00 -59,187 59,160 -27 
Service request for re-phasing in 
2015/16

Underspend from 2014/15 is being requested to 
carry forward into 2015/16 to continue to meet the 
mayor's priorities.

WAA920 - Health Campus-Provision 1,103,790 686,685.02 -417,105 417,100 -5 
Service request for re-phasing in 
2015/16

WAA923 - Health Campus-Contrib to LABV 0 0.00 0 0 0
WAA925 - Charter Place 0 0.00 0 0 0

WAA945 - ShS-ICT Modernisation 906,917 8,594.40 -898,323 898,323 0
Service request for re-phasing in 
2015/16

WAA950 - Upgrading/Resurfacing CarParks 59,111 0.00 -59,111 59,111 0
Service request for re-phasing in 
2015/16

WAA952 - Match Funding Capital Projects 35,000 19,109.59 -15,890 15,890 -0 
Service request for re-phasing in 
2015/16

WAA954 - Green Spaces Strategy 52,741 56,207.21 3,466 0 3,466
WAA982 - ShS-Hardware Replace Prog 18,000 0.00 -18,000 18,000 0

WAA983 - Cultural Quarter Ph 1 2,050,582 1,680,155.62 -370,426 370,426 -0 
Service request for re-phasing in 
2015/16

WAA987 - Retained Housing Stock 61,922 1,647.15 -60,275 60,275 0
Service request for re-phasing in 
2015/16

WAA991 - Veolia Capital Improvements 91,040 91,044.00 4 0 4
WAA992 - ADDITIONAL GREEN WASTE BINS 0 0.00 0 0 0

WAA994 - DEPOT REFURB 0 17,174.99 17,175 0 17,175
£12k spent on taxi shelter not re-phased from 
2013/14 and additional £5k of expenditure on 
unforseen works

WAA995 - Building Investment Programme 1,015,369 640,765.47 -374,604 374,600 -4 
Service request for re-phasing in 
2015/16

WAB925 - ShS-HR Appraisal Module 3,600 0.00 -3,600 3,600 0

WAB931 - Himalayan Way Play Area 98,942 36,121.75 -62,820 62,820 -0 
Service request for re-phasing in 
2015/16

Works delayed but due to complete in 2015/16

WAB932 - Jellicoe Road Play Area Improv 6,893 6,999.64 107 0 107
WAB938 - Goodwood Rec Play Area Improve 5,000 5,068.00 68 0 68

WAB940 - East Drive Play Area 158,500 166,959.07 8,459 0 8,459
Scheme cost more than expected even though the 
latest budget was revised upwards

WAB942 - Waterfields Rec Play Area 129,272 128,969.02 -303 0 -303 

WAB944 - Berry Avenue Play Area 60,000 0.00 -60,000 60,000 0
Service request for re-phasing in 
2015/16

Work due to complete in 2015/16

WAB945 - Southwold Road Play Area 50,000 48,629.04 -1,371 1,371 0
Service request for re-phasing in 
2015/16



WATFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL - CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2014/15 & 2015/16

WBC Capital Programme
Revised               
Budget             

2014/15

                                                              
Outturn               
2014/15

                                                                             
Variance                                         
2014/15

Total               
Rephasing 
2014/15

(Underspend) / 
Overspend Post 

Rephasing 
2014/15

Comments on Rephasing 
Request

Service Comments on Underspend / Overspend 

WAB946 - Ridgehurst Avenue Play Area 26,500 25,132.95 -1,367 23,500 22,133
Service request for re-phasing in 
2015/16

Scheme cost over two years to be £50k as opposed 
£27k

WAB948 - Riverside Recreation Ground 310,300 171,043.45 -139,257 139,257 0
Service request for re-phasing in 
2015/16

Works delayed, due to complete in 2015

WAB949 - Oxhey Park 2,150 2,044.04 -106 0 -106 
WAB950 - King George V Playing Field 39,400 39,397.00 -3 0 -3 

WAB951 - Colne River Project 457,803 397,415.85 -60,387 60,387 -0 
Service request for re-phasing in 
2015/16

Work to complete in 2015/16

WAB953 - Radlet Road MUGA 30,000 30,057.80 58 0 58
WAB954 - Knutsford Road 34,600 34,600.00 0 0 0

WAB958 - Local Park Improvements 60,779 58,535.39 -2,244 2,244 0
Service request for re-phasing in 
2015/16

Work to complete in 2015/16

WAB961 - Cherry Tree Allotments 12,000 12,000.00 0 0 0

WAB962 - Local Nature Reserves 38,784 21,806.16 -16,978 16,978 0
Service request for re-phasing in 
2015/16

Work to complete in 2015/16

WAB964 - Centennial House Landscaping 210 0.00 -210 0 -210 

WAB966 - Cassiobury Park HLF Project 548,681 299,055.60 -249,625 249,625 -0 
Service request for re-phasing in 
2015/16

WAJ100 - Mand Disabled Facilities Grant 599,552 405,089.85 -194,462 194,462 -0 
Service request for re-phasing in 
2015/16

WAJ203 - Affordable Housing 24,328 0.00 -24,328 24,328 0
Service request for re-phasing in 
2015/16

WAJ300 - Decent Homes Assistance 219,015 59,049.23 -159,966 159,966 0
Service request for re-phasing in 
2015/16

WAJ600 - Environmental Services Schemes 8,393 5,836.79 -2,556 2,556 -0 
Service request for re-phasing in 
2015/16

WAJ602 - Energy Grants 26,954 27,212.00 258 0 258

WAJ800 - Environmental Services Schemes 72,590 0.00 -72,590 72,590 0
Service request for re-phasing in 
2015/16

WNC004 - Colne Valley Improvments 8,699 9,000.00 301 0 301

WNC022 - Multi Use Games At Meriden 120,000 0.00 -120,000 0 -120,000 
Budget virement (see cost centre 
WAA198 - Meriden Community 
Centre Redev)

This budget has now been vired to create the full 
£320k WBC commitment to the Meriden CC 
redevelopment

Sub Total 14,596,372 8,950,105.45 -5,646,266.55 5,694,591 48,324

Other Schemes
WAA601 - Support Services-General Fund 552,470 552,470.00 0 0 0

Total 15,148,842 9,502,575.45 -5,646,266.55 5,694,591 48,324




	Agenda
	5 Sutton, Gade and Church car park lease variation
	Appendix A

	6 Update on Croxley Rail Link
	7 Watford Health Campus, LABV Business Plan
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2

	8 Summary of the Financial Outturn 2014/15
	Appendix 1A-1E
	Appendix 2


